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Proposed Findings of Fact

L d s "Shie was fliledtei July 110 1961, by the
Attorney General of the United States under the Civil
RighElalet af 1957 as anmended (42 WeSiCu 1971, . The
Complaint alleges that the defendants have engaged in
acts and practices which have deprived citizens of the
right to register and to vote in Ouachita Parish,
Lowisians witheut distinction of racever ecelor.

2. The defendants in this case are Mae Lucky,
Registrar of Voters of Ouachita Parish, the State of

Louisiana, the Citizens' Council of Ouachita Parish,




Louisiana, and seventeen individuals who conducted a

purge of the voter registration rolls in the spring

of 1956,
(a)

(B

Mae Lucky has been the Registrar of Voters
of Ouachita Parish since January 2, 1953,

As registrar of voters her function is to
receive applications for registration from
prospective electors and to determine
whether or not they are qualified to reg-
ister to vote. It is also her function to
see to it that qualified voters remain on
the registration rolls and are not unjusti-
fiably removed therefrom, Mrs. Lucky
resides in and maintains her office at
Monroe, Louisjana, in Ouachita Parish.

The defendant Citizens' Council of Ouachita
Parish, Louisiana, is a corporation which was
incorporated under the laws of the State of
Louisiana at Monroe, Louisiana, on March 2,
1956. One of the objections and purposes

of the Citizens' Council is to maintain
white political supremacy and racial segre-
gation in Louisiana. One of the immediate
reasons for organizing the Citizens' Council
of Ouachita Parish was the dissatisfaction
of its organizers with the patterns of Negro

voting in Monroe, Louisiana.




(¢) Defetidants John J. Feeback, James Q. ‘Dorris
and L., Allen West were the incorporators
and first Board of Directors of the defendant
Cltizemna? Couné¥l, Dsfendant By Dy
Anderson was Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the defendant Citizens' Council
in Lpril and May 1956. The other officers
of the defendant Citizens' Council at that
time were: defendants Billye L. Adams,
President; Valter B. Reed, Vice President;
and Vaughn L. Phelps, Secretary. Defendants
Rewv. S by Briskall asd szxuilla Greer Rivers,
Jr., were members and defendant Felix Edward
Brossett was an employee of the defendant
Citizens' Council during the spring of 1956,
The other individual dsfendants, Wesley D.
Burdine, Antham Bevel Johnston, Lawrence H,
Fox, Algernon Clerk Ransom, Wirt H. Dean,
James C. Ussery and Don L. Williams, all acted
under the direction and suprevision of the
officers of the defendant Citizens' Council
while engaged in the challenging of Negro
voters im the 'spring of 1956.

3. In 1960 there were 40,185 white persons and
16,377 Negroes of woting dge im Ouachita Parish.

4, In 1953 Ouachita Parish adopted the permanent
registration system by which all persons who have reg-
istered to vote since January 1, 1949, have not had to
re-register unless their names were stricken from the

veaising valls.,




5. As of the time of the Democratic Party
primary election for State officers in January 1956
there were 21,274 white voters and 4,518 Negro voters
permanently registered to vote in Ouachita Parish. As
of December 7, 1963, the date of the lsst Democratic
Party primary slecction for State officers there were
28,532 white persons and 1,142 Hegroes on the regis-
tration: vrolle,

6. Prior to 1956, persons in Ouachita Parish
were able to become registered voters if they possessed
the qualifications of aze, citizenship and residence,
and were not disqualified by reason of convictions.
Applicants for registration to vote were not required
to read or to interpret any part of the state or
federal constitutions or to take any test of literacy,
intelligence or knowledge. Applicants were given
whatever assistance they needed in order to fill out
their applications sufficiently to provide the regis-
trar with the information she needed to register the
applicants, The application card was used for informa-
tional purposes and not as a test. The registrar did
not grade application cards for errors or omissions,
The registrar filled out application cards for
applicants and permitted other persons to fill out

cards for applicants.




7. In the spring of 1956 the defendant Citizens'
Council and the individual defendants initiated a
purge of the voter registration rolls by challenging
the registration status of approximately 4,000 Negro
voters and a tolhen numbepieof white voters. On the
basis of these challenges the defendant registrar
issued Citations of Notice to Erase to each of the
challenged voters and removed from the voter registra-
tion rolls all those challenged voters who did not
satisfy her retention procedures. Under the retention
procedures established by the defendant registrar it
was impossible for the registrar‘’s office to process,
within the allotted time, all challenged voters who
seu gt Ve " De ke laiined ion the 1olls. In order to.be
retained on the rolls challenged voters were required
to produce three voters to make affidavits in their
behalf, The registrar nlaced unreasonable limitations
on the use of Suchiaffidavits.. Only 917 of the
challenged llegro voters were able to retain their
registration status by filing affidavits.

8. During the period June 1956 through August
1957 the registrar conducted a purge of the voter reg-
istration rolls of Ouachitd Papishic sshe e xaunadl whis
application cards of persons then registered to vote
and challenged the registration status of voters on the
ground that their applications contained alleged

omissions and errors. In selecting the applications




for challenze she applied more stringent standards to
Negroes than she applied to white persons, Negroes,

but not white persons, were challenged for age com-
putation errors and for omissions in the blanks calling
for "other' and 'last'" registration, Persons who were
challenged by the registrar during this period were
required to re-register in order to remain on the
registratien rolile . & Fegmiune 4956 through August 1957,
the registrar challenged 5,383 of the 24,361 white
persons and 1,448 of the 1,016 llegroes then registered

to vote, Among those challenged by the registrar were
845 of the 917 Negroes who had been challenged by the
Citd zens® Motnc =il rat=ulead By APE1davit of Retention.
At least nety-two Negro school teachers were challenged
by the registrar in 1956,

9. 1In conducting the re-registration of voters
purged from the rolls in 1956 and 1957 the registrar
applied more stringent procedures, tests and standards
to Negroes than she applied to white persons. During
June 1956, only 132 of 334 applications of Negroes were
accepted while all but two of the 1,365 applications
of white persons were accepted. During the entire
period June 1956 through August 1957 the registrar
accepted 3,896 of the 3,971 applications of white per-
sons and only 579 of the 1,186 applications of Negroes.

10. One of the discriminatory devices used by the
registrar to prevent the purged Negroes from becoming

re-registered was the constitutional interpretation test.




This test was adopted by the registrar in the spring

of 1956 at the request of the Citizens' Council. It

was used from 1956 through Augzust 1961l. During this
period 12,459 white persons became registered to vote
and only si:tty-five applications of white persons were
rejected on the basis of the interpretation test. During
the same period 1,172 Hegroes became registered and 517
applications of Hegroes were rejected for registration
on the ground that the applicant failed to interpret

a constitutional sectioen to the satisfaction of the
registrar, slccot@ing to: the'reglstiar ;s 295 ef fhese
rejected lHegroes filled out correct application cards.
At least eleven Negro school teachers were rejected for
registration for failure to interpret to the registrar's
satisfaction.

11 AlSe Sin il nEsne . of 1956, concurrently with
the Citizens' Council purge, the registrar commenced
using tiles Appitiaaiinforl a8l a2 skriet test for Negroes,
but not for white persons. The application card had
never previously been used as a test for any applicants.
During the S SeeeRi 058 tivcugll 1963, over 26% of the
Negro applicants were rejected solely on the ground that
their applications contained alleged errors or omissions.
Less than 3% of the white applicants were rejected on
similar grounds. At least twenty-six Negro school
teachers have been denied registration to vote on the

grounds that theysiailed $the application card test.




Negro applicants havé been rejected for such technical
reasons as one day age miscomputations and striking
out the wrong 'have' in the character statements so
that the statement reads, "I have (have not) been
convicted . . ".  White applicants on the oElEE
hand have been accepted for registration although
their applications contained alleged errors and
omissions. The registrar has also assisted white ap-
plicants in £illing out the application form usually
by pointing out their errors to them and permitting
them to make corrections.,

Lt TR Sed vt years, 1956 through 1963,
17,022 applications of white persons have been accepted
and 668 (or 3.8%) of the applications of white persons
have been rejected for registration, During the same
perivd 1,5.2 applications of Negroes have heen accepted,
while 1,435 (or 48.8%) of the applications of Negroes
have been rejected for rezistration.

12, The registrar has deprived Negroes but not
white persons of the opportunity to apply fo: registra-
tion to vote by imposing arbitrary and unreasonable
requirements for proof of identity and proof of length
of residences

(a) From at least 1959 until July 1961 Negroes

were required, as a prerequisite to making
applicafrion,  tdiprediics two registared
voters from their ward and precinct to

identify them by affidavii., The registrar

placed arbitrary and unreasonable restrictions




on thée number of times a voter could
identify appnlicants. These restrictions
. further minimized the opportunity cf Negro
citizens in Ouachita Parish to become reg-
istered to vote., White persons were not
required to have identifying vouchers.
(b) Since July 1961 the registrar has imposed
as a condition prerequisite to making
application that prospective applicants
establish that they have resided in Ouachita
Parish for six months or more by producing
three documents. BEach of the three documents
must bear the applicant’s name and must be
dated to show that it is more than six
months old but no clder than two years.
fach document must show an address in
Ouachita Parish., One must have the present
address of the applicant. At the time this
requirement was adopted only about 5% of the
adult Negro population of Ouachita Parish
was registered, while a substantial majority
of white persons of voting age were on the
vobertrod ls,
14, The registrar conducted periodic examinations
of the application cards of registered Negro voters
during the years 1958 through 1960, 1In ecach of these

yvears she went entirely through the file of HNegroes

registered in Monroe comparing the addresses given by




the registrant with the listings in the city directory
and telephone book., Once during these three years

she conducted such an examination in the file of Hegro
voters Ter West Monroe and the rural wards, On the

basis of these "address checks' she challenged the
registration status of every Negro voter for whom

she found any discrepancies no matter how slight, She
only conducted one address check in the file of white
voters in Monroe and then did not challenge white voters
for minor discrepancies. She never conducted such an
examination in the file of white voters in West Monroe
or the rural wards. As a result of her "address checks"
the registrar challenged over half of the Negroes then
registered to vote and only about 3% of the white voters.
Many qualified Negro voters were unjustifiably challenged
and vemoved from the rolls. The challenged Negro voters
were often not given adequate notice of the challenge
lodged against their registration status. On at least
one occasion the registrar sent a challenge letter to
Negro voters residing in a rural ward telling them to
come to the registrar's office '"if there is any change
in your address or name''. Negro voters who did not
respond to this letter were removed from the registration
rolls even though there had been no change in their
addresses or names. The registrar sent challenge

letters to the residence address rather than the mailing

address of challenged Negro voters even when she knew

that they would not receive mail there. 3Shz also sent




such letters to the old address of Negro voters who
had moved, althouzh she knew their new address.

15. 1In 1959 the registrar examined the appli-
cation card of each Negro then registered to vote in
Ouachita Parish and recomputed the age in years, months
and days. She challenged the registration status of
each Negro voter whose age computation she determined
to be incorrect. All Negro voters so challenged who
sought reinstatement were required to re-register by
taking all of the regiatPationstests. If they failed
any of thesé fdsts whay were denied ragistration. As
a result of these challenges for age miscomputations
153 or nearly 20% of the Negro voters of Ouachita
Parish were challenged. No white voters were chal-
lenged for age miscomputation, although about 5,000
of the applicaticns of white persons registered at
that time contained siuch eriors.

16. The acts and practices found in Findings 8
through 15 hereof constitute deprivations of the right
of Negro citizens to register to vote without distine-~

tion of race. These deprivations have been and are

pursuant to a pattern and practice of discrimination,




PROPOSED CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

R Thie Uourt Mgs: Jorisdictionw ef this action
TR 40 U5, 1971(d) and under 28 U,.S5.C. 1345,

2. The Attorney General is authorized to insti-
tute this action on behalf of the United States under
42 U,S.C. 1971(c) to obtain relief against acts and
practices by the defendants which would deprive other
persons of rights and privileges secured by 42 U.S.C.
To7ita) .

3. The State of Louisiana is properly joined as
a party defendant pursuant to Section 601i{b) of the
Civil Rights Act i 1060, ‘B0 11 S CL 1 Ol el

4. Acts and practices of the defendant registrar
which violate 42 U.S.C. 1971(a) are also the acts and
practices of the defendant State., (Civil Rights Act of
1960, Sec. 601(b)).

5. 42 U,S,.C, ¥971(Ca) forbids any distinetionice i
the voting process, including registration for voting,
based upon race or color,

6. The defendant Citizens' Council and the indiv-
idual defendants, in challenging the registration status
of Negro voters in Ouachita Parish in the spring of 1956
engaged in acts and practices under color of law which
were racially discriminatory in purpose and effect in
violation of 42 U.5.C., 1971(a) and the Fourteenth and
Fifteenth Amendments to the Constitution of the United

States. The challenges having been unlawful were null,
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void and ineffective for any purpose and the Negro
voters taken off the registration rolls as a result

. of these challenges were accordingly illegally removed
therefrom.

7. The participation by the defendant registrar
in the discriminatory purge of Negro voters conducted
Ftlle defendant Citizens'! Council was in violation of
42 U.S.C., 1971(a) and the Fourteenth and Fifteenth
Amendments to the Constitution of the United States.,

The defendant registrar removed the names of nearly

all of the challenged Negro voters from the voter rolls,
knowing that it was a purge of Negroes and not of

white voters, These acts of the defendant registrar
are attributable also to the defendant State. See

R U.S.C. 1971 (e).

. The purgs . of voters in Ouachita Piarish cemducted
by the defendant registvar during the period June 1956
through August 1957 was racially discriminatory and was
Bl wiclation of 42 U.S.C. 1971(a) and the Fourteenth
and Fifteenth Amendments to the Constitution of the
United States.

9. The use by the defendant registrar of more
stringent procedures, tests and standards for Negro
applicants than for white applicants in conducting the
re-registration of voters who had been purged from the
FRlle in 1956 and 1957 was racially discriminatory
and in violation of 42 U,S.C. 1971(a) and the Fourteenth
and Fifteenth Amendments to the Constitution of the

United States.
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10y The use by the defendant registrar of the
interpretation test between 1656 and 1961 as a pre-
requisite to registration to vote discriminated against
Negro applicants for registration in violation of 42
U.S.,C. 1971(a) and the Fourteenth and Fifteenth Amendmants
to the Constitution of the United States-

11. The purge of Hegro voters in 1959 by the defend-
ant on the ground that these voters had miscomputed
their ages when they registered was discriminatory and
arbitrarydRdsan viel=r o v 42 8.58.0..1971(a) and £he
Fourteenth and Fifteenth Amendments to the Constitution
of the United States.

12. The fact that the defendant registrar has over
an eight-year period, 1956-1963, rejected 48% of the
applications of Negroes and has accepted 96% of the
applications of white persons creates the presumption
that Negro citizens have been deprived of the right to
vote witheuF @RciE o Eien o Tace or @olor; and in the
absence of proof by the defendants that the rejected
Negroes were not qualified under the standards and
requirements applied to the accepted white persons,
discrimination must be found.

13, The use by the defendant registrar of the appli-
cation form as a strict test for Negro applicants but
not Eor WA e NSRRI N o viol ation of 42 U,S5.C.
1971(a) and the Fourteenth and Fifteenth Amendments

to the Constitution of the United States.
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14,  The practice of denying registration to
Negro applicants in Ouachita Parish on the ground
that they make errors or omissions on their applica-
tion forms while ziving assistance to white applicants
in £ill ing SORE Ehcdr application forms 'so as to avoid
such errors and omissions is in violation of 42 U.S.C.
1971(a) and the Fourteenth and Fifteenth Amendments to
the Constatution of the United States.

15, i heaetice ol danying registration to
Negro anplicants in Ouachita Parish on account of
errors or omissions on their application forms where,
despite these ervors and omissions, their applications
show them to possess all of the substantive qualifica-
tions and none of the disqualifications to vote under
Louisiana law, is wholly unreasonable and arbitrary
and in violation of the due process clause of the
Fourteenth Amendmant to ihe Constitution of the United
States.

156, The practice of denying to Negroes in
Ouachita Parish the opportunity to apply for registra-
tion on the ground that they did not produce two
registered voters from their respective ward and
precinct to identify them is unreasonable and arbitrary
and in violation of 42 W 8.0, 1971(a) and the Fourteenth
and Fifteenth Amendments to the Constitution of the
United States. This violation was aggrevated by the
practice of the defendant registrar of restricting

the number of times a voter could identify applicants.,

Sy s




17, The adoption and use by the defendant regis-
trar in 1961 of the requirement that applicants for
registration must establish proof of six months resi-
dence in Ouachita Parish by producing three satisfactory
decuments ‘are Lt lolat - of 42 U.SL0x" 1971(a) and
the Fourteenth and Fifteenth Amendments to the
Constitution of the United States. This requirement
1s arbitrary and unreasonable and places a heavier
burden upon Negroes, who constitute the unregistered
class, than upon white persons, the majority of whom
were already registered when the requirement was
invoked,

18, The practice of the defendant registrar of
periodically combing through the registration records
of llegro voters, comparing their addresses with those
listed in current directories, and vemoving from the
voter rolls those Negro voters as to whom discrepancies
are found and who did not respond to letters of challenge
based on such discrepancies is discriminatory and arbi-
trary and jin v iglaEEarmaEets? 1] S.C. 1971 (a) and the
Fourteenth and Fifteenth Amendments to the Constitution
of the United States.

19. The piErIressige walsing of registration
standards and requirements in Ouachita Parish at a
time when a majority of the white persons of voting age
were already permanently registered but only a token
percentage of the Negroes of voting age were registered
is iR vwiglation @f &2 W, 0. 1971 (a) amd the Pourteenth
and Fifteenth Amendments to the Constitution of the

United States.
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20. Negro citizens of Ouachita Parish are
"otherwise qualified by law to vote' within the meaning
of 42 U.S.C. 1971(a) if they possess all of the qual-
ifications and none of the disqualifications under
Louisiana law, as those qualifications and disqualifi-
cations are actually applied by the Registrar of

Voters of Ouachita Parish in registering other persons.
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PLAINTIFF'S PROPOSED DECREE

Pursuant to the Findings of Fact and the
Conclusions of Law entered this date:

1. This Court finds apecifically that the
defendants have engaged in acts and practices which
have deprived Negro citizens in Ouachita Parish,
Loudsiana, ©f the #ight seeured by 42 U.8.C. 1971(3),
and that the deprivations of this rizht have been and
are pursuant to a pattern and practice of racial dis-
crimination.

2. The Citizens' Council of Ouachita Parish,
Louisiana, and the individual defendants, to wit:
Billye L. Adams; Dr, D, L. Anderson; Felix Edward
Brossett il vEsat e Deans James O, Dorris; Rev. H. L.
Driskelligtaein J. Feelack: Vaiughn 1. Phelps; Walter
B. Reed; Aguilla Greer Rivers, Jr.; James C. Ussery;
L. Allen West; Wesley D, Burdine; Lawrence H. Fox;
Antham Bevel Johnston; Algernon Clark Ransom; Don L.
illiams, individually and as members or agents of the
Citizens' Council, and all persons acting in concert
with them, are hereby enjoined from causing or initiating
challenges or filing any affidavits of challenge which
have as their purpose or effect discrimination based
upon race or color against the registrants of Ouachita
Parish, Louisiana, and from engaging in any other acts
or practices which would interfere with the rights of

any citizens of the United States to vote in any election.,
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3. Mae Lucky, Registrar of Voters of Ouachita
Parish, and the State of Louisiana, their deputies,
agents and successors, are hereby enjoined from:

(a) Giving any legal effect whatsoever to

the challenges filed in the office of the
Registrar of Voters of Ouachita Parish,
Louisiana, against Negro registrants of
that Parish since 1955.

(b) Permitting the names of any of the Negro
voters thus challenged to remain off the
permanent and current rolls of qualified
voters of Ouachita Parish, Louisiana,

The purpose of this subparagraph is to
require the Registrar of Voters of Ouachita
Parish to do whatever is necessary to be
done to reinstate within a reasonable time
from the date of this Decree upon the per-
manent rolls of qualified voters in Ouachita
Parish, Louisiana, the names of all the
Negroes who were challenged and removed
from the voter rolls since 1955 and who
have not subsequently become registered or
become disqualified by reason of death,
conviction, or removal from the Parish,

(c)  Achinzimen on Eiwansiany cffect to any
challenges of registrants in Ouachita Parish,

Louisiana, which may hereafter be filed which
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have as their purpose or effect discrim-
ination against Negrces on account of
their race cr color,

(d) Challenging registrants in Ouachita
Parish, Louisiana, for technical errors,
omissibns, age miscomputations, or for
any reason which has as its purpose or
effect discrimination against Negroes
on account of their race or color,

(e) Challenging or remioving from the voter
registration rolls registrants in Ouachita
Parish, Louisiana, for discrepancies between
their application card addresses and the
addreasses listed for them in the city
directory, telephone book or any other
source, without substantial proof such
registrant does not possess the resi-
dence required to be a registered voter
in Ouachita Parish, Louisiana,

4, It is further ORDERED, ADJUDGEL and DECREED
that the defendant State of Louisiana and the
defendant Mae Lucky, Registrar of Voters of Quachita
Parish, Louisiana, their agents, officers, employees,

successors in office and all persons in active

concert with them be and each hereby is enjoined




from engaging in any act or practice which involves
or results in distinctions of race or color in the
registration of voters in Ouachita Parish, Louisiana.
Specifically, each of said defendents and persons

is enjoined from:

(a) Applying different and more stringent
registration qualifications, require-
ments, procedures or standards *to Negro
applicants for registration than those
which have been applied to white appli-
cants since January 1949 in determining
whether or nct such applicants were or
are’ qualifisd to vegisier Lo vote 'sa
Ouachita Bardeh, Lovisiana.

(b) Failing to register applicants who wmeet
the following qualifications:

(1) He is a citizen of not less
than 21 years of age;

(2) He has resided in the State,
Parish and precinct the
required period;

(3) He is not disqualified by
reason of bad character cr con-
viction of a disqualifying
crime; and

(4)¢ He ds: ¥itewata angd is able to
demonstrate his ability to read
and write by cecpying a portion
of the Preamble to the Consti-
tution of the United States.




el

(d)

(e)

Using the application form (LR-1) in any
manner or for any purpose different from
and more stringent than that for which

it has been used in registering white
persons in OQuachita Parish since January
1945, Specifically, the application form

is to be used to cobtain and record essential
information from which it can be determined
whether applicants pcssess the gualifications
set forth in sub-paragraphs (b)(1)-{3) above.
The application form is not to be used as

an examination or test. No applicant for
registration whose application form shows
that he meets the substantive qualifications
prerequisite to voting under Louisiana law
shall be denied registraticn because of
errors or omissions on his application form.
Requiring applicants for registration to
prove their residence by documentary
evidence or by any other method other

than by their statements under oath.,
Reguiring applicants for registration to
prove their identity by producing registered

Ve ters e ida B heml or by requiring any

other unreasonable means of identification.




5. It is further ORDERED that said defendants

in applying the above qualifications shall comply with

the following standards and procedures:

(a) Applicants who possess these qualifica-
tions must be registered, and it is the
duty of the Registrar to determine whether
the applicants possess these qualifications.

(b) 1If from the infeormation contained on the
application form tha Registrar is unable to
determine whether the applicant possesses
the qualifications of citizenship, age,
residence, or if the Registrar is unable
to determine whether the applicant is
disqualified by reason of bad character
cr conviction of a disqualifying crime,
then the Registrar should obtain the
necessary infcirmation either by pointing
out the deficiency to the applicant and
permitting him to supply the necessary
information on his application form, or by
questioning the applicant and roting the
necessary information on his form. If the
information supplied by the applicant on
his application form would disqualify him
from registration if true, the registrar

shall call this fact to his attention to

insure that the information is correct and




if it is incorrect permit the applicant

to correct his answers if he so desires.
It is the duty of the registrar to deter-
mine whether the applicant is qualified
for registration to vote and the registrar
cannot justify the rejection of any appli-
cant on the ground that the registrar does
not have sufficient information about the
applicant frcm which to determine whether
the applicant is cqualified, unless the
applicant refuses to furnish the necessary
information after the insufficiency has
been called to his attention.

6. It is further ORDERED that the defendant
Registrar shall notify each rejected applicant for
registration of the specific reason for his rejection.

7. It is further CRDERED that the said defendants,
within a reasonable time, place upon the current and
permanent registration rolls of Ouachita Parish,
Loulsiana, the names of the Negro citizens who since
1955 have applied for and been denied registration to
vote in Ouachita Parish and whose application forms
show them to possess the substantive qualifications
set forth in paragraph 4(b) of this Decree; unless,
however, within a reasonable time the defendants by
affidavit show to the Court that any such person should
not be placed upon the rolls by reason of death, removal
from the Parish, conviction of a disqualifying crime,

or subsequent registration, As the determination is
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made as to each such perscn that he is among those
to be placed upon the current and permanent registra-
tion rolls of Ouachita Parish, he shall be notified
that his name has been placed on the permanent voter
registration rolls. The defendants shall file with
the Clerk of this Court on or before the fifteenth
day of each month commencing the second month following
the date of this Decree a written report reflecting
their progress during the preceding month in complying
with this napasEanie
8. 1t is further ORDERED that the defendant
registrar submit to the Clerk of this Court in writing
and a copy thereof to the plaintiff on cr before the
fifteenth day of each month commencing the second
month following the date of this Decree and until
further orders of this Court, a report which shall
include:
(1) The date and places applications were
received during the preceding report
period and the hours during which the
registrar was available to receive
applications,
(2) The aetion taketivhy the pvegistrar on
each application for registration during
the preceding report period which, with

respect to accepted applications, will

S




(3)

state the name and race of the
applicant and date of application,
and with respect to rejected appli-
cations, the name and race of the
rejected applicant, the date of
application, and the specific reason
for Hig rejectianm,

The action taken by the registrar in
removing registrants from the rolls
during the preceding report period,
which, with respect tec each removed
registrant, will state the name and
race of the registrant, the date of
original registration, the date removed
from the rolls, and the specific rea-
son for removal. If the reason for
removal 1s something other than the
daalti¥er EBlie. fasistrant or the.regis~
trant's failure to vote in the immed-
iately preceding four years, the
report shall state how the reascn
for removal came to the attention of
the registrar and shall contain a
sworn statement from the registrar
describing in detail any examination

of the voter rolls that took place

for the purpose of determining whether




persons currently registered were to

be challenged and removed., If such
examination of the rolls does not

cover every ward and precinct of the
parish, the sworn statement shall state
what wards and precincts, or parts of
wards and precincts were covered, and
the reason or reasons for not including
all the others.

9., It is further ORDERED that defendant registrar
make available at the office of the registrar all
registration records of Ouachita Parish, Louisiana,
for inspection and photcgraphing by agents of the
United States at any and all reasonable times.

The costs incurred in this proceeding to date
are hereby taxed against the defendants.

Done this day of , 1964,

UNITED STATES DISTRiCT JUDGE




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that I served the foregocing Proposed
Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Decrece,
together with the Plaintiff's Brief and Appendix in
support thereof, upon Honorable Jack P. F. Gremillion,
Attorney General for the State of Louisiana, Baton
Rouge, Louistala . Hencrable Horry J., Kron, Jr.,
Assistant Attorney General, Baton RouZe, Loculsiana,
Albin P, ‘LagSWiee. "DEefricte At torney for the Fourth
Jvdicial District, Monroe, Louisiana, and William Shaw,
Attorney, Homer, Louisiana, attorneys for the defendants,
by mailing copies thereof to them at said addrecses
by Unifted Stagas Al il shcttie wprepaid,. on

this 25th day of September, 1964,

ETEXANDER C. RUSS
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